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Clerk: Governance Support Governance Support 

Telephone: 01803 207013 Town Hall 
E-mail address: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk Castle Circus 
Date: Friday, 01 August 2025 Torquay 
  TQ1 3DR 
 

 
Dear Member 
 
STATUTORY LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - THURSDAY, 7 AUGUST 2025 
 
I am now able to enclose, for consideration at the Thursday, 7 August 2025 meeting of the 
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee, the following reports that were unavailable when the 
agenda was printed. 
 
 
Agenda No Item Page 
 
 
 5.   To consider an application for a Review of a 

Premises Licence in respect of Zakopane, 16 
Market Street, Torquay 
 

(Pages 45 - 56) 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Governance Support 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:democratic.services@torbay.gov.uk
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Melanie Walker

From: Christopher Rees-Gay 
Sent: 23 July 2025 11:13
To: Melanie Walker
Subject: RE: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review 

Good Morning Mel, 
 
Thank you for this, your position is clear.  
 
Many thanks 
 
Chris 
 
Christopher Rees-Gay 
 
Woods Whur  

 

 
Woods Whur, St James House, 28 Park Place, Leeds, LS1 2SP 

This email, including any attachments, is confidential and may be legally privileged. If it is received by mistake please let us know and delete from your 
system - do not read or copy it or disclose its contents to anyone. Any liability (in negligence or otherwise) arising from any third party relying on this email is 
excluded. Emails are not secure and cannot be guaranteed to be free of errors or viruses. It is your responsibility to scan emails and attachments for viruses 
before opening them. No responsibility is accepted for emails unconnected with our business. Messages may be monitored for compliance purposes and to 
protect our business. 

The principal office of Woods Whur 2014 Limited is at St James House, 28 Park Place, Leeds LS1 2SP. VAT number 187289453.  info@woodswhur.co.uk   

Woods Whur 2014 Limited is authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority (the SRA), details of which can be accessed on the SRA 
website (http://www.sra.org.uk/solicitors/code-of-conduct.page) . SRA number: 613288.  

 

From: Melanie Walker   
Sent: 23 July 2025 11:05 
To: Christopher Rees-Gay  
Subject: RE: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review  
 
Good Morning Chris,  
 
Thank you for your email. 
 
Whilst it is reassuring that the operator is taking this matter seriously I am not in a position to discuss or agree 
to anything prior to the hearing on 7th August.  I would advise that Mr Salah, or his representative present any 
proposed further conditions at the review hearing itself. 
 
Kind regards  
 
Mel  
 
Mel Walker  
 
Trading Standards Officer 
Lead Officer – Age Restricted Products  
Tel:   
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Heart of the South West Trading Standards Service 
A joint service commissioned by Devon, Plymouth, Somerset and Torbay council 
 
01392 383000 
Trading Standards, County Hall, Topsham Road, Exeter EX2 4QD 

www.devonsomersettradingstandards.gov.uk 

For clear practical consumer advice call the Citizens Advice Consumer Service on 0808 223 1133 

For business advice call 01392 381381 from Devon, 01752 304147 from Plymouth, 0300 123 2224 from Somerset or 
01803 208025 from Torbay 

To find approved local traders, to recommend a business for the scheme, or to apply to join Buy With Confidence 
visit www.buywithconfidence.gov.uk. 

Privacy notice 

Email disclaimer 

From: Christopher Rees-Gay   
Sent: 23 July 2025 09:49 
To: Melanie Walker  
Subject: RE: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review  
 
Good Morning Mel, 
 
I am just following up on the below, to confirm that training has been booked for 29 July, with all staff. 
 
Darrell Butterworth will be the trainer. 
 
Please let me know a good time to discuss the below. 
 
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
Sent: 12 July 2025 15:17 
To: Melanie Walker  
Subject: RE: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review  
 
Good Afternoon Mel, 
 
As you are aware I am instructed by the operator in this matter. 
 
I am writing to confirm that he is taking the matter extremely seriously. He does dispute elements of the 
information provided in support of the review, however, he would like to work with you in order to reach a 
satisfactory outcome for all in the review hearing. 
 
He and all staff are undertaking external training by a third party provider, on the 4 x licensing objectives, underage 
sales and the sale of illicit cigarettes and vapes. 
 
We also propose to add the below further conditions to the premises licence: 
1.No alcohol, tobacco, vapes or nicotine products will be purchased from unknown sources such as itinerant traders 
“cold callers” at premises. A notice shall be displayed close to the entrance to the premises (either on a shop 
window or door) which clearly indicates that alcohol and tobacco products will not be purchased from “cold callers” 
visiting the premises. 
2. All alcohol, tobacco, vapes and nicotine products will be purchased from the bona fida wholesaler. All such 
purchases will be accompanied with official invoices which will allow full traceability through the supply chain 
alongside any applicable AWRS scheme number for that supplier. Invoices will be retained on the premises for a 
minimum of 12 months and will be provided on request to a police officer authorised officer of Leeds City Council. 
3. The premises licence holder and/or the designated premises supervisor will ensure that all staff are instructed and 
trained on the subject of illicit alcohol, tobacco, vapes and nicotine products, including periodic refresher training. 
Records of the training will be made and kept up to date and checked on a regular basis by the premises licence 
holder and/or designated premises supervisor. 
 
If you could please confirm a good time to call you to discuss the above. 
 
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
Sent: 27 June 2025 16:19 
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To: Melanie Walker  
Subject: Re: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review  
 

Good Afternoon Mel, 

 

Thank you for the confirmation. 

 

Many thanks 

 

Chris 

 

From: Melanie Walker  
Sent: 27 June 2025 16:04 
To: Christopher Rees-Gay 
Subject: RE: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review  
  

Good Afternoon Chris,  

  

I can confirm that the attached is everything so far in relation to the review. 

  

The hearing is listed for 7th August 2025 at 09.30 at the Banking Hall, The Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay. 

  

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

A joint service commissioned by Devon, Plymouth, Somerset and Torbay councils 

  

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

For business advice call 01392 381381 from Devon, 01752 304147 from Plymouth, 0300 123 2224 
from Somerset or 01803 208025 from Torbay 

To find approved local traders, to recommend a business for the scheme, or to apply to join Buy With 
Confidence visit www.buywithconfidence.gov.uk. 

Privacy notice 

Email disclaimer 

  

From: Christopher Rees-Gay   
Sent: 26 June 2025 10:30 
To: Melanie Walker  
Subject: FW: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review  

  

Good Morning Mel, 

  

Could it please be noted that I am now instructed by Zakopane Turkish Ltd in relation to this review 
matter. 

  

Can you please confirm that the hearing is listed for 7 August 2025. 

  

Can you please also confirm that he attached is all the paperwork so far. 
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Many thanks 

  

Chris 

  

Christopher Rees-Gay 

  

Woods Whur  2014 Limited 
 

 
, St James House, 28 Park Place, Leeds, LS1 2SP 

  

From: Melanie Walker  
Sent: Thursday, June 19, 2025 9:17:52 AM 
To:  
Subject: Zakopane Alcohol Licence review  

  

Good morning Mr Salah,  

  

Please see attached licence review application and associated documents for Zakopane, 16 Market 
Street, Torquay.  

  

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

  

  

Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



 
 
 
 
 
 

Alcohol Licensing Department 

Torquay Police Station, South Street, Torquay, TQ2 5AH 

 
 
Dear Mr Ari SALEH 
Zakopane 
16 Market Street 
Torquay 
TQ1 3AQ 
 
RE:  Breach of Licensing Conditions Licence PL1225 
 
I refer to contact on 23rd July 2025 when I attended the premises in company with Torbay 
Council Licensing Officer Julie SMART to conduct a full licensing inspection. 
 
Breaches of the following conditions were noted:-  
 
Premises licence summary was not on display in public view 
Licence summary was stored out the back you were advised that this is required to be in sight 
of the customer and have been asked to put this in view behind the counter. 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder Annexe 2 item 3: -  
All spirits will be “stored and sold” from behind the counter inaccessible to the customers. 
We discussed the spirits on the side counter were in fact accessible and in reach of the 
customers and it was recommended that these were removed and placed behind the 
counter to comply with this condition. 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder Annexe 3 item 1: - 
No Beer/cider/lager with an abv of more than 6.0% shall be sold from the premises. 
We noted numerous Beer/Cider/ Lager with an abv of up to 9.0% in breach of this condition. 
You stated that this was an oversight between yourself and your licensing agent who had 
previously advised you that you were not restricted by this condition as your agent had 
omitted to see the Annexe 3 condition.  Regardless, as premises licence holder you are 
required to be aware of and understand the terms and conditions of your licence. 
 
Concerns around the following conditions not being adhered to were noted: -  
 
The prevention of crime and disorder Annexe 2 item 4: -  
No single cans of beer/lager or cider will be sold from the premise.  Signage notifying 
customers of this will be displayed at the entrance to the premises. 
Single cans were on display and priced as single cans however you had signs to say that you 
would only supply single cans in sales of two.  We agreed that there was no technical breach 
of this licence however I would like to recommend that single cans are not available at the 
premises. 
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Alcohol Licensing Department 

Torquay Police Station, South Street, Torquay, TQ2 5AH 

The protection of children from harm Annexe 2 item 4:-  
The premises is to maintain a refusals log book to record the details of all refusals of the sale 
of alcohol to persons suspected of being under the age of 18, appear to be drunk or 
suspected proxy sales. 
Albeit you could produce this refusals register there had not been an entry since November 
2024 raising questions as to the maintenance of this log book. 
 
As Premises Licence Holder it is your responsibility to ensure that the terms and conditions of 
the premises licence are complied with at all times to ensure that statutory licensing 
objectives are being met. 
 
I note that responsible authorities namely Trading Standards have requested a review of your 
licence due to other matters.  I recommend that you consider immediate introduction of 
changes to working practices to ensure compliance of the Licensing Act 2003.  I request that 
all Beer /Lager/Cider over 6.0% abv is removed from sale, that you maintain your refusals log 
book with every refusal of alcohol sale and that the spirits are removed to behind the 
counter. 
I would also like to recommend that the sale of single cans ceases and that you sell only 
multipacks of x4 cans or above to assist in managing alcohol related ASB in the community. 
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me should you wish to discuss the above matters.   
 
 
Rachael SHOTTON (57742) 
Alcohol Licensing Officer 
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